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are off the record.

(O f the record.)

VI DEOGRAPHER: The tine is 9:12 a. m
We're on the record.

BY MR CROSS:

Q Al right. M. Barnes, you have
Exhi bit 1?

A Yes, sir, | do.

Q All right. So take a look at Exhibit 1 in
front of you.

And do you understand that you are

designated to testify today on Topic 17

A. Yeah, | remenber seeing a |list of topics
in which | was designated as being the one that
woul d speak.

Q Okay. So just read through Topic 1, the
subparts a through h, and tell me if you're prepared
to testify on that topic today.

MS. LaROSS: And, David, we're going to be
reserving all objections except those to the
form of the question or responsiveness of the
answer until trial; is that correct?

MR. CROSS: Yeah, that's the default under
the federal rules, yeah

MS. LaROSS: Sure. And | just -- you
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know, we go into each deposition and often say
it or don't, but |I just wanted to clarify --
MR. CROSS: Okay.
MS. LaROSS: -- we just have that standing
agreenent with you guys. That's -- | just
wanted the record to be clear.
MR. CROSS: COkay.
THE WTNESS: |'ve |ooked at the itens in
point la through h, and those are the itens |
amfamliar with, yes, sir.
BY MR CROSS:

Q Okay. Then go on to Topic 2, please, and
l et me know if you're prepared to testify on that
t oday.
MS. LaROSS: David, | believe David
Sterling is designated for 2c.
MR. CROSS: Ckay. Great. That's right.
Sorry.
BY MR CROSS:

Q So, M. Barnes, just look at 2a, b, and d.

A. 2a, b, and d, I -- | believe |I'm prepared
to testify on those itens.

Q Okay. And then look at Topics -- just to
make sure -- yeah, look at Topics 7 through 11, so

7, 8, 9, 10, and 11, and let nme know if you're
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prepared to testify on those topics today.
A. Yes, sir, | believe I'm prepared.
Q And then the last one is Topic 18, the
| ast one in the list, and let me know if you're
prepared to testify on that, too, please.
MS. LaROSS: It's ny understandi ng, David,
that that one -- that topic was -- we
desi gnated David Sterling, Merritt Beaver, and
Chris Harvey.
MR. CROSS: Sorry.

MS. LaROSS: And sonme of the topics in the

MR. CROSS: Yeah, that's right. Sorry.
Yeah.
MS. LaROSS: Okay. No -- no worries.
And sonme of the topics in 7 through 11 we
al so designated either M. Sterling or
M. Beaver, but there is certainly overlap with
M. Barnes.
MR. CROSS: Yeah. Okay.
M5. LaROSS: Great. Thank you.
BY MR CROSS:
Q M. Barnes, what did you do to prepare to
testify on these topics today?

A. | have met with our attorneys.
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Managenment System and then nmedia created and then
the testing executed.

Q And who deci ded on that process today?

A It was -- | was involved in that decision,
along with attorneys in the Secretary of State's
of fice.

Q What attorneys?

A. When we set it up |last was Ryan Ger many
and Kevi n Rayburn, when he was deputy general
counsel .

Q When the new system was i nplenmented with
BMDs, was there any discussion of M. --

Dr. Shanpbs's testinony and about the need to test a
whol e ot nmore than a single BVMD and printer?
THE W TNESS: Il --
MS. LaROSS: Objection to the form of the
questi on.
THE WTNESS: | do not recall.
BY MR CROSS:

Q As the head of CES, is it your viewthat
testing a single BMD and printer on election day is
a reliable way of assessing the security and
reliability of some 30,000 BMDs and printers across
the state?

A. When we enter into the testing, the way
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that the project files are built in regards to
progranm ng a BVMD, when you're within a single
jurisdiction, there's only one data file created
fromthat jurisdiction's data el ection project
that's used to programa BVMD. So the sane data file
is used to programall BMDs within a single county.

So if we randomy select a county, have
them create a backup, bring that backup into
Atlanta, install that into a Dom nion El ection
Managenment conputer, then create the election file
that's used to programa BMD, we would be putting
the same file on one BMD or 500 BVMDs. So it's an
expectation that if one BMD shows proper operation,
that others would as well.

Q So is the answer to ny question yes, you
think that is a reliable nethod?

A We have found to be -- we have found it to
be reliable in the past.

Q You've found it to be reliable because
it's never shown malware or a glitch with whatever
equi pnment you tested?

A we --

MS. LaROSS: Objection to the form of the
questi on.

You may answer.
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THE W TNESS: We have never encountered
any situation where the systemdid not operate
as expected.

BY MR, CRCSS:
Q Do you have a background in statistics?
A. | took sonme statistical classes in
graduate school, yes, sir.
Q So why doesn't the State test a
statistically representative sanple of voting
equi pnment, instead of 1 out of sone 30, 000 pieces?

M5. LaROSS: Objection to the form of the
questi on.

THE WTNESS: As you speak, there are
30, 000 pieces of equipnment. Depending upon
what sanpling you were to set up, you would
then have to have access to that anount of
equi pnmrent and a |location to set all of that
equi pnent up for testing purposes and manpower
to go through that testing exercise.

BY MR CRCSS:
Q And that's not sonething the State can do?
A. The State, of course, has resources. M
office has a total of seven individuals, and that
woul d be a hard task for us to execute on a single

day.
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Q Are you aware that there are USB ports in
the current voting equi pnent, the BMDs and the
printers, that are accessible to voters in the
voti ng booth?

A. | am aware that there are USB ports on the
devi ces. However, accessible by the voter on
el ection day, | would -- | would rai se questi on of
t hat .

Because the B -- the D -- the BVDs on
el ection day, the -- the panels where you would find
those USB ports are behind seal ed nechanisns. There
are seals that are attached on the sides of the BMD,
there are seals that are attached on the sides of
the printers, to prohibit access to those | ocations.

Q So it's your understanding that all the
USB ports on the printers and BVMDs are covered by

seal s on el ection day?

A It is my understandi ng, yes, sir.
Q But you haven't inspected those; right?
A. I have not been out into a county on

el ection day, no, sir.

Q And who is responsible for inspecting al
of the seals on all of the voting equipnment? Is
that at the county | evel?

A. The counties are responsible for
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mai nt ai ni ng the security of their voting equi prment.

Q But you're aware that it's happened on
numer ous occasi ons the counties have used BVDs in
el ections where the seals were broken on el ection
day; right?

M5. LaROSS: Objection to the form of the
questi on.

THE W TNESS: Any notification that we
have obtained with a county saying that they
had a unit that the seal was broken, our
direction has al ways been, well, that needs to
be resealed or the unit taken out of operation,
preferably take the unit out of operation if it
is election day.

BY MR, CRCSS:

Q And under what circunstances would you
tell a county to just go ahead and reseal a broken
seal on a BMD on el ection day, rather than renove it
for testing?

A To be honest, | don't believe | would ever
tell a county just to reseal it. And if it's in the
m dst of election day, you're going to turn that
machi ne of f and you're going to set it aside.

Q And why is that?

A. Because we want to try to -- also try to
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has brought that to ne.
BY MR CROSS:
Q Are you aware that Dr. Hal derman prepared

a report that was submtted to the Secretary's
office -- or to their counsel, | should say, on
July 1 of 2021, where he did a further inspection of
t he Fulton County voting equi pment?
MS. LaROSS: Objection to the form of the
questi on.
THE WTNESS: The only thing |I'm aware of
Is a report that was referenced in a news
article of a couple of weeks ago. But that is
all the know edge | have of that.
BY MR CROSS:
Q So before that news article, you had not
heard anything about this report from Dr. Hal der nan

regarding the Fulton County voting equi pment?

A No, sir, | had not.
Q So no one in the Secretary's office ever
told you that a -- an expert had prepared a nearly

100- page report detailing numerous security
vul nerabilities in the voting equi pnent that you're
responsi ble for as the head of CES?

M5. LaROSS: Objection to form of the

questi on.
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THE W TNESS: No, sir, they had not.
BY MR CROSS:
Q Do you have any insight into why the
deci sion was made at the Secretary's office not to
share anything about the fact that Dr. Hal derman had
found these vulnerabilities with you, with David
Ham I ton, with Janes Oiver, with Merritt Beaver?
Do you know why that is?
M5. LaROSS: Objection to the formof the
questi on.
THE W TNESS: No, sir, | do not.
BY MR CROSS:

Q Does that strike you as odd?

MS. LaROSS: | object to the formof the
questi on.
THE WTNESS: |'m sure that nembers of the

Secretary of State's office are doing the
things that they feel are necessary need to be
done.
BY MR CROSS:
Q Who woul d you ask if you wanted to know
why the decision was nmade not to share any
i nformati on, including that Dr. Hal derman had found
vul nerabilities, with you and others in the office?

VWho woul d you ask?
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A My question would probably be asked of
general counsel.

Q M. Germany?

A Yes, sir.

Q Woul d you expect the Secretary's office to
take neasures to mtigate vulnerabilities that were
identified in the current voting systenf

MS. LaROSS: Object to the formof the
questi on.
THE WTNESS: It's nmy expectation that the

Secretary of State's office would do what it

needs to do to make sure that the voting system

I's functioning properly.

BY MR CROSS:

Q Properly and securely; right?

A Yes, sir.

Q And including taking neasures to mtigate
any vulnerabilities that were identified with that
system right?

M5. LaROSS: Objection to the formof the
questi on.

THE W TNESS: Again, | can't speak to what
may or may not be in the itemthat you're

di scussing, sol -- 1 -- 1 don't know what the

State would need to do to address them
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BY MR CROSS:
Q Fair enough.

You don't know the specifics, but you
woul d expect the State to take sonme neasures to
mtigate vul nerabilities, whatever those neasures
m ght be; right?

M5. LaROSS: Objection to form of the

questi on.

THE WTNESS: | have confidence that the

State would continue doing its job as the --
you know, we are the elections division for the
State. We're part of the elections division,
and | would -- | would have a belief that the
Secretary of State's office would continue
doing its due diligence.
BY MR CROSS:
Q Well, given none of the senior |eadership
in the Secretary's IT departnent and you, as the
| eader of CES, were informed about anything that
Dr. Hal derman had found, including even that he had
found vulnerabilities at all, who is it you believe
in the Secretary's office is actually dealing with
those vul nerabilities, if anyone?
M5. LaROSS: Objection to form of the

questi on.
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THE WTNESS: | do not know.
BY MR CROSS:

Q Who woul d you ask if you wanted to know?

A Again, the people -- the person that | ask
t he nost questions of in our office is our general
counsel .

Q M. Germany?

A Yes, sir.

Q As you sit here, though, you're not aware
of any specific neasures -- there are no neasures
you can point nme to that have been adopted since
July 1 of 2021 to address the vulnerabilities of
Dr. Halderman's report; right?

MS. LaROSS: Object to the formof the
questi on.
THE W TNESS: That is correct.
BY MR CROSS:

Q And you can't point nme to any neasures
t hat have been adopted since Septenber 2020 taken by
the Secretary's office to address the hack that he
denonstrated in that hearing; right?

M5. LaROSS: Object to the formof the
questi on.

THE W TNESS: | cannot.
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BY MR CROSS:

Q Have you participated in any discussions
with anyone in the Secretary's office regarding
Dr. Hal derman generally or his work?

A. No, sir, I -- 1 can't recall any direct
conversations with anybody in the Secretary of

State's office in relation to Dr. Hal der man.

Q Are you famliar with the name Dr. Juan
G | bert.

A | believe he is associated with the
University of Florida, or -- or was at sonme point in
tinme.

Q And have you worked with himat all or had

any conmuni cations with himabout his work in this
case? Just yes or no.

A. No.

Q Are you aware that he has -- he was
retai ned and offered testinony on behalf of the
Secretary's office as an election security expert in
this case?

A | am not awar e.

Q Were you aware that Dr. Gl bert testified
in his deposition that if he wanted to have a
cybersecurity assessnent done of voting equi pnent

li ke that used in Georgia, he would turn to two
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experts, Dr. Alex Halderman and Dr. Andrew Appel ?
MS5. LaROSS: Object to the formof the
gquesti on.
THE W TNESS: | am not aware of what

Dr. Glbert my have said in his deposition.
BY MR CROSS:

Q Are you aware that Dr. Gl bert had access
to Dr. Halderman's full July 2021 report on the
Ful ton County voting equi pnent?

A No, sir, | am--

M5. LaROSS: Object to the formof the
questi on.
THE WTNESS: No, sir, | amnot aware.
BY MR CROSS:

Q Were you aware that Dr. G lbert testified
under oath that he did not disagree with any of the
technical vulnerabilities identified in that report?

M5. LaROSS: Object to the formof the
questi on.
THE WTNESS: No, sir, |'mnot aware.
BY MR. CROSS:

Q Al right. Take a |ook at Topic 9,
pl ease, if you woul d.

A. Sur e.

Q Looki ng at Topic a, are you aware of any
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suspected or actual unauthorized access to software
or data on any conponent of the -- of Georgia's
Dom ni on systenf?

A No, sir, |'m not.

Q Are you aware of any suspected or actual
unaut hori zed copying or alteration of software or
data on any conponent of Georgia's Dom nion systenf

A. No, sir, |I'mnot.

Q Did you undertake any investigation or any
research in preparation for today to determ ne
whet her that happened?

A No, sir, | have not.

Q Looki ng at Topic 9¢c -- I"'msorry, just
actually before we | eave 9a, if you were to do sone
research or some sort of investigation on 9a, who
woul d you ask? Who woul d you expect to know the

answer to that?

A | really don't know where | would start
with that.
Q Woul d the current elections director be a

good start?

A | have discussions with himon a weekly
basis, if not nore than weekly, about our voting
system But any tinme that we feel |ike we would

need to start |ooking into something, he would be
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wor kers were not successful in powering on the

equi pnmrent as they shoul d have been.
BY MR CROSS:

Q And that's just one of the problens.
There were al so problens where the BMD equi pnent,
even when powered on, didn't function as it was

supposed to. That happened in sone cases; right?

A. I"m-- | suspect that was the case, but |
can't think of a direct exanple. But | wll say
yes.

Q Okay. \What energency paper back- --
strike that.

What plan did the Secretary adopt as an

ener gency paper backup for the 2020 el ection, if

any?
MS. LaROSS: bjection as to formof the
questi on.
THE WTNESS: It's ny understandi ng that
they had -- Secretary of State's office had

I nstructed counties that as a cause of
enmergency, that if something were to transpire
where the BMD was not operational, that they
shoul d have preprinted copies of hand-marked --
hand-fillable ballots available to poll workers

for distribution to the voters.
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Those hand- nmarked paper ballots can be
scanned by the I CP scanners that are in place
at the polling |ocations on el ection day.

BY MR, CRCSS:

Q Did you at sonme point see a witten plan
for using enmergency paper ball ot backups for the
2020 el ection, the June 2020 el ection?

A. | don't recall seeing very much of the
instructional docunentation for process of nmanaging
polls that was being sent out fromthe el ections
division to counties to try to get themready for
the first rollout. There was a -- a high nunber of
training materials and official election
notifications and such that went from M. Harvey's
office to the counties to get themready for that
el ection.

So |"msure that there were those things,
but I can't renmenber -- | can't say to a fact that |
saw every single one of those.

Q If someone were to ask you for a copy of a
enmer gency paper ball ot backup plan for the June 2020
el ection, is there a docunent that you could put
your hands on and say, "Here it is"?

M5. LaROSS: Objection to the formof the

questi on.
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private conputer and key the information in.

Q Okay. And one | ast question.

Are you aware of any forensic exam nation
that's ever been done of the conputers or the server
that sits on the Dom nion private network to
determ ne whether it's ever been conprom sed in any
way or -- or accessed in any unauthorized fashion?

MS. LaROSS: Objection to form of the

questi on.

THE WTNESS: The Dom nion -- the

Dom ni on- mai nt ai ned systenf
BY MR CROCSS:

Q Yeah. Let ne be clear.

So the -- the private network that now
exi sts as of the sumrer of 2020 that's used to
main- -- run the Dom nion system at the Secretary's
office. That's what we're tal king about.

A Ckay. All right. So -- so state the
guestion again, please.

Q Are you aware of any forensic exam nation
of any of that equipnent, neaning the conputers, the
server, any part of the equi pnment that makes up that
private network, to determ ne whether there's ever
been any conprom se or unauthorized access?

A. | am not aware of one.
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are in place for counties to execute on their
equi pnment .

BY MR. CROCSS:
Q That's not ny question, M. Barnes.

My question is: |In 2020, were you under
the belief that the |ogic and accuracy testing that
you' ve descri bed woul d detect mal ware or any other
conprom se of the voting equipnent in CGeorgia?

M5. LaROSS: Object to the formof the

gquesti on.

THE WTNESS: It was ny belief that the
tests that the counties were undertaki ng would
gi ve them sone | evel of confidence that the
voting system was matching to what had been
certified for use by the State previously.

BY MR, CRGCSS:

Q So is that a "yes" or a "no

to ny
guestion?
A. That's a yes.
Q Al right. Gab Exhibit 23, please.
(Plaintiffs' Exhibit 23 was marked for
identification.)
BY MR CROSS:
Q Just let ne know when you've got that.

A. | am | ooking at it.

Veritext Lega Solutions
215-241-1000 ~ 610-434-8588 ~ 302-571-0510 ~ 202-803-8830




© 00 N oo o0 b~ wWw N P

N N N N NN P P P P P P PP PR
o A~ W N B O © 00 N O O b~ Ww N +—», O

Case 1:17-cv-02989-AT Document 1634-55 Filed 02/14/23 Page 23 of 34

Page 271

BY MR, CROSS:
Q M. Barnes, let ne cone back to the
question | asked you.

Do you have a personal view --
irrespective of what any jurisdiction is doing
around the country, as soneone who's been worKking
with elections for two decades, do you have a
personal view on whet her hand-nmarked paper ballots

are a reliable method of voting?

M5. LaROSS: | object to the form of the
guesti on.
THE WTNESS: | think any systemt hat

jurisdictions use, whether it's a BMD system
that's been through federal testing and state
testing, whether it's an optical scan system
that's been through federal testing and state
certification testing, a hand-marked paper
bal | ot systemthat's been through |evels of
testing, | believe all of those voting systens
are reliable for use by whatever jurisdiction
chooses to use them
BY MR, CROSS:
Q In fact, Georgia does currently process
mllions of hand-nmarked paper ballots through its

absentee voting system right?
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A It does.

Q And you certainly woul d not suggest
there's anything unreliable about that system
right?

A. I woul d not suggest that. | believe it is
very reliable.

Q Are you aware that the current Dom nion
system can process, scan, tabul ate hand-marked paper
ballots at the precincts on election day?

MS. LaROSS: Objection as to formof the
questi on.
THE WTNESS: The -- the I CP scanner that

Is sent out to a polling location on election

day has the ability to process either a

hand- mar ked paper ballot or a BMD- generated

bal | ot .

BY MR, CRCSS:

Q Are you aware that BM -- sorry. Strike
t hat .

Are you aware that Georgia is the only
state in the country that uses BMDs as the prinmary

means of voting statew de?

MS. LaROSS: | object to the formof the
questi on.
THE WTNESS: | amnot certain on that.
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said. Okay. | wish | got an errata. That's

enbar r assi ng.
BY MR CRCSS:

Q Okay. Al right. So the question | was
asking you, M. Barnes, was: |If the ballot has a QR
code that is of the type that the scanner is
designed to tabulate, but it captures different
sel ections than the voter actually cast on the BMD,
the scanner would still -- would still tabulate
that; right?

M5. LaROSS: Object to the formof the
questi on.
THE W TNESS: The scanner is designed to
tabul ate what is contained within the QR code.
BY MR, CRCSS:

Q Based on your experience with el ections
over the years and what you know about the current
environnment of -- of threats -- sophisticated
threats to U.S. elections, would you personally be
nore confortable with an el ection systemthat does
not use QR codes, where voters can actually read
what's going to get tabul ated?

MS. LaROSS: | object to the formof the
questi on.

THE W TNESS: What | can speak to is | do
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human -- I'm sorry -- scanni ng hand- mar ked paper
bal l ots; right?

MS. LaROSS: | object to the formof the

questi on.

THE W TNESS: Yes, | have confidence that
our systemis scanni ng hand-mar ked paper
bal | ots properly and reflecting the intent of
the voter.

We have a systemthat actually gives us
both options and we are currently using both
options, and | have confidence in both options.

BY MR CROCSS:

Q Wel |, under the -- under the new Georgia
statute, it's not as easy to vote absentee as it
used to be; right?

MS. LaROSS: Objection to the form of the
questi on.

THE W TNESS: There have been changes to
the election statute in Georgia in reference to
when absentee ballots -- the length of tine
absentee ballots can be issued prior to an
el ection, the ampbunt -- how those absentee
ball ots are returned to the county el ections
office for tabul ati on purposes. There have

been changes to the election statute, yes.
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that it's accessible to our voters, and that it
is reflective of what the voters wish to purvey
to the State when an el ection takes place.

BY MR, CRCSS:
Q Can you identify one cybersecurity

el ection expert that has endorsed the current

Georgia systemas a reliable voting systenf

A | cannot.

Q I's voter confidence in that system
i nportant?

A Voter confidence in all that we do as the
el ections divisions inmportant. It's inportant that

t hey have confidence in the people that run
elections. [It's inportant that they have confidence
in the systens that we use. It's inportant that
t hey have confidence in the voter registration
system
And we work day in and day out doing what

we can to secure the systemthat we have.

Q But if you're confident that the systemis
secure, particularly in an environment now where
t here have been extraordinary clains nade about the
reliability of that system why not just have an
el ection security expert analyze it, examne it, and

of fer an opi nion on whether it's reliable?
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MS. LaROSS: | object to the formof the
questi on.
THE WTNESS: |'msure if the

Secretary of State decided that he wanted to do
that, that that would get done.

BY MR CROSS:
Q And as you sit here, you don't know why

he's not decided that; right?

M5. LaROSS: | object to the formof the
questi on.
THE WTNESS: | do not.

BY MR CROSS:

Q Do you think voters woul d have nore
confidence in a systemthat did not use QR codes,
where what was getting tabul ated, they could

actually read for thensel ves?

MS. LaROSS: | object to the formof the
questi on.
THE WTNESS: | don't know. Voters have

confidence in systens, and it seens like in
today's environment, voters only have
confidence in systens that -- where the people
that they supported in the election won and

t hey don't have -- they don't have good

confidence in systens when their candi date of
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BY MR CROSS:

Q You understand that during the audit that
you' ve just tal ked about, there was never any effort
made when readi ng the hunman-readabl e portion of a
particular ballot to see whether the QR code on that
bal |l ot captured the sane sel ections? Are you aware
of that?

MS. LaROSS: Objection to form of the
questi on.

THE WTNESS: | am aware that during the
audit, that they focused on the text on the
bal | ot solely, that they were not correlating
back the text to the QR code at the tine.

BY MR CROSS:

Q So the ballot would -- sorry. Strike
t hat .

The audit that we're tal ki ng about woul d
not catch a situation where the human-readabl e text
had different selections than the QR code on a
particul ar ballot. That would not be captured;
right?

A I[t's ny understanding that the audit that
t hey undertook was solely |ooking at the text and
were not engaging the QR code at that tine.

Q Do you know why a deci sion was made not to
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conduct at |east sone reliable statistical sanpling
of ballots to conpare the QR codes to the
human-readabl e text to make sure that they actually
correspond?
M5. LaROSS: Objection to the formof the
gquesti on.
THE WTNESS: | was not privy to the
di scussions outlining how the audit was going
to be perfornmed, so | don't know if those -- if
t hose di scussions were di scussed or not.

BY MR. CROSS:

Q If you wanted to know, who would you ask?
A | believe the people that were involved in
that discussion at the tine, | believe Kevin

Rayburn, who was the deputy general counsel for the
Secretary of State's office at the tine was the --
was the preem nent audit person in the Secretary of
State's office at the tinme. So | believe he was

i nvol ved with the discussions on the steps that

woul d be taken in that process.

Q And - -

A. | don't think he had left the Secretary of
State's office yet at that tinme. | know he is now
wor king for EAC, but I'm-- | mght be tying up ny

calendar a little bit.
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Q And that's Kevin Rayburn you're talking
about ?

A Yes, sir.

Q M. Barnes, do we agree that the fact that
t here has not been any known conproni se or
wi despread fraud in Georgia elections to date, that
t hat does not nean that that can never happen in the
future? Are we agreed on that?

M5. LaROSS: Object -- objection as to
form of the question.

THE W TNESS: We never know what can
happen in the future. |[If sonething bad can
happen -- | think Miurphy's Law is if sonething
bad can happen, it can happen.

So that's why we have the procedures and
protocols in place to try to prevent bad things
from happeni ng, but none of us can see into the
future.

BY MR CROSS:

Q Were you aware that Theresa Payton, the
head of Fortalice, testified in this case that it's
not a question of when a U S. election wll get
hacked, but if?

M5. LaROSS: Object to the formof the

questi on.
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THE WTNESS: | am not aware of that
testi nony.

MR. CROSS: All right. Sorry | took you a
little | onger than you asked. | apol ogize
about that. Let ne let you get out of here.

And we will -- we'll keep it open. I'm
not going to litter the transcript. |'m going
tolet himout. W'Il send you a letter,

Di ane, on -- on how to proceed.

VI DEOGRAPHER: Okay. This suspends the
deposition. The tinme is 5:04 p.m and we are
now of f the video record.

(Deposition suspended at 5:04 p.m)

(Pursuant to Rule 30(e) of the Federal
Rul es of Civil Procedure and/or O C G A
9-11-30(e), signature of the witness has been

reserved.)
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CERTI FI CATE

STATE OF GEORG A:

COUNTY OF FULTON:

| hereby certify that the foregoing transcript was
taken down, as stated in the caption, and the
gquestions and answers thereto were reduced to
typewriting under ny direction; that the foregoing
pages represent a true, conplete, and correct
transcript of the evidence given upon said hearing,
and | further certify that I amnot of kin or
counsel to the parties in the case; amnot in the
regul ar enploy of counsel for any of said parties;

nor aml in anywise interested in the result of said
case.
, -
Q,fd / /f /; yi
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LEE ANN BARNES, CCR B-1852, RPR, CRR, CRC
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COURT REPORTER DI SCLOSURE

Pursuant to Article 10.B. of the Rules and
Regul ati ons of the Board of Court Reporting of the
Judi ci al Council of Georgia which states: "Each
court reporter shall tender a disclosure format the
time of the taking of the deposition stating the
arrangenents made for the reporting services of the
certified court reporter, by the certified court
reporter, the court reporter's enployer, or the
referral source for the deposition, with any party
to the litigation, counsel to the parties or other
entity. Such formshall be attached to the
deposition transcript,” |I nmake the foll ow ng

di scl osure:

| ama Georgia Certified Court Reporter. | am here
as a representative of Veritext Legal Solutions.
Veritext Legal Solutions was contacted to provide
court reporting services for the deposition.
Veritext Legal Solutions will not be taking this
deposition under any contract that is prohibited by
OC.GA 9-11-28 (c).

Veritext Legal Solutions has no contract/agreenent
to provide reporting services with any party to the
case, any counsel in the case, or any reporter or
reporting agency fromwhoma referral m ght have
been nade to cover this deposition. Veritext Legal

Solutions will charge its usual and customary rates
to all parties in the case, and a financial discount
will not be given to any party to this litigation.
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LEE ANN BARNES, CCR B-1852B, RPR, CRR, CRC
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